
 
 
 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

www.covingtonwa.gov 
Tuesday, May 26, 2015                                                                                                        City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                                            16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION - NONE 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, 
not the audience or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes 
per speaker.  Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes:  May 6, 2015 Special Meeting; May 12, 2015 Joint Study Session with CEDC & Chamber 

Board; and May 12, 2015 Regular Meeting Minutes (Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson) 
C-3. Appoint Voting Delegates for Association of Washington Cities Annual Business Meeting (Council) 
 
REPORTS OF COMMISSIONS 

• Human Services Chair Fran McGregor:  May 14 meeting 
• Parks & Recreation Chair Laura Morrissey:  May 20 meeting 
• Arts Chair Lesli Cohan:  May 14 meeting 
• Planning Vice Chair Paul Max:  May 7 and May 21 meetings 
• Future Meetings: Economic Development Council:  Next meeting May 28 

 
PUBLIC HEARING 
1. To Receive Testimony on Proposed 2016-2021 Transportation Improvement Program (Lindskov) 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
2. Discuss Police Officer Funding Options (Hendrickson) 

 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT *See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – if needed 
 
ADJOURN 
 
Americans with Disabilities Act – reasonable accommodations provided upon request a minimum of 24 hours in advance 
(253-480-2400). 

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�


Consent Agenda Item C-1 
Covington City Council Meeting 

Date:  May 26, 2015   
 
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  MAY 6, 2015 CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL 

MEETING @ KENTLAKE HIGH SCHOOL MINUTES; MAY 12, 2015 CITY 
COUNCIL SPECIAL JOINT STUDY SESSION WITH COVINGTON 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL & COVINGTON CHAMBER OF 
COMMERCE BOARD OF DIRECTORS MINUTES; AND MAY 12, 2015 CITY 
COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Sharon G. Scott, City Clerk 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  Proposed Minutes 
 
PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION:  
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance   _____ Resolution     X     Motion              Other  
 

Councilmember __________ moves, Councilmember ___________ 
seconds, to approve the May 6, 2015 City Council Special Meeting 
@ Kentlake High School Minutes; May 12, 2015 City Council 
Special Joint Study Session with Covington Economic 
Development Council & Covington Chamber of Commerce Board 
of Directors Minutes; and May 12, 2015 City Council Regular 
Meeting Minutes. 

1 of 45



Unapproved Draft – May 6, 2015 Special Meeting at Kentlake High School 
Submitted for Approval:  May 26, 2015 
 
 

1 
 

City of Covington 
City Council Special Meeting Minutes 

Wednesday, May 6, 2015 
 
The Special Meeting was called to order in the Performing Arts Center of Kentlake High School, 
21401 SE Falcon Way, Kent, Washington, Wednesday, May 6, 2015, at 7:45 a.m., with Mayor 
Harto presiding. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Margaret Harto, Joe Cimaomo, Mark Lanza, Jim Scott, Sean Smith, and Jeff Wagner. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS ABSENT: 
Marlla Mhoon. 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 
Regan Bolli, City Manager; Noreen Richard Hart, Community Development Director; and Sharon Scott, 
City Clerk/Executive Assistant. 
 
Dr. Potts, Principal of Kentlake High School, introduced Mayor Margaret Harto to the students. 
 
Mayor Harto greeted the students and called the special meeting to order with the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
 
Mayor Harto introduced Sharon Scott, City Clerk/Executive Assistant; Regan Bolli, City 
Manager; and Richard Hart, Community Development Director. 
 
ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION: 
1.  Listening Session to Receive Student Comments on the Town Center Plan. 
 
Community Development Director Richard Hart gave a presentation on the Council’s vision for 
the Town Center. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:   
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 
 
Forty-two high school students provided comments to the Council regarding their views, ideas 
and suggestions for the new town center as to what activities, programs, and amenities they 
would like included in the project. 
 
The following is a categorized list of their suggestions. 
 
Restaurants: 

• Applebee’s 
• restaurants that stays open later hours  
• In-N-Out Burger (2) 

2 of 45



Unapproved Draft – May 6, 2015 Special Meeting at Kentlake High School 
Submitted for Approval:  May 26, 2015 
 
 

2 
 

• Starbucks (in the park) 
• Krispy Kreme  
• Olive Garden 
• Chipolte 
• Bakery 
• Larger coffee shop  
• Student run café or restaurant 

 
Entertainment: 

• movie theater (2) 
• outdoor performing arts center 
• community theater (indoor) 
• gaming center with bowling, etc. (2) 
• bowling alley (2) 

 
Recreation: 

• Basketball court 
• Undercover activities 
• Swimming pool 
• Skate park 
• Multipurpose playfields for rugby, etc. 

 
Concerns: 

• Environmental impact 
• Tearing down anything other than Covington Elementary 
• Traffic 
• Tearing down homes/Covington Elementary (2) 
• Timeline of project 
• Preserving nature 

 
Community 

• Girl Scout center 
• Community center (2) 
• Open space for walking in gardens 
• Park area for teenagers to hang out 

 
Retail 

• A variety of stores to shop 
• Macys 
• JC Penney’s 
• clothing stores 
• Hot Topic 
• Nike store 

3 of 45



Unapproved Draft – May 6, 2015 Special Meeting at Kentlake High School 
Submitted for Approval:  May 26, 2015 
 
 

3 
 

• Independent small businesses 
• Foot Locker 
• Sports store 
• Music store 

 
Environmental: 

• Rain gardens to filter 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 8:32 a.m. 
 
Prepared by:      Submitted by:  
 
__________________________________         
Joan Michaud      Sharon Scott 
Senior Deputy City Clerk    City Clerk 

4 of 45



Unapproved Draft – May 12, 2015 Special Joint Study Session with Covington Economic 
Development Council and Covington Chamber of Commerce Board of Directors Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  May 26, 2015 
 
 

City of Covington 
City Council Special Joint Study Session with Covington Economic Development Council 

and Covington Chamber of Commerce Board of Directors Minutes 
Tuesday, May 12, 2015 

 
(This meeting was recorded and will be retained for a period of six years from the date of the 
meeting). 
 
The Special Joint Study Session with the Covington Economic Development Council and 
Covington Chamber of Commerce Board of Directors was called to order in the City Council 
Chambers, 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington, Washington, Tuesday, May 12, 2015, at 
6:03 p.m., with Mayor Harto presiding. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Margaret Harto, Joe Cimaomo, Mark Lanza, Jim Scott, Sean Smith, and Jeff Wagner. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS ABSENT: 
Marlla Mhoon. 
 
CHAMBER OF COMMERCE BOARD OF DIRECTORS PRESENT: 
Joshua Lyons, Lisa Agron, Kathryn Groves, Zach Steele, Tamara Paul, Jeff Wagner, and Kathy 
Fosjord. 
 
CHAMBER OF COMMERCE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ABSENT: 
Jim Wene, Brian Hanis, Linda Simpson, Debbie Markwald, Natalie Routh, Colleen Starr, Andrea 
Steele, and Dr. Richard Stedry. 
 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Lisa Agron, Ed Cook, Zach Steele, Krista Bates, Laura Roth, and Jeff Wagner.  
 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COUNCILMEMBERS ABSENT: 
Kevin Holland, Steven Pand, Sherry Corby, and Hugh Kodama. 
 
CITY STAFF PRESENT: 
Regan Bolli, City Manager; Richard Hart, Community Development Director; and Sharon Scott, 
City Clerk/Executive Assistant. 
 
Mayor Margaret Harto called the joint study session to order. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Council Action:  There was Council consensus to approve the agenda as amended to 
reverse the order of Item No. 2 and No. 3. 
 
 

5 of 45



Unapproved Draft – May 12, 2015 Special Joint Study Session with Covington Economic 
Development Council and Covington Chamber of Commerce Board of Directors Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  May 26, 2015 
 
 
ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION: 
1.  Update on Initiatives. 
 
CEDC Co-Chair Zach Steele introduced this item, reporting that at the August CEDC meeting 
the members agreed to focus upon three initiatives:  healthy community, business expansion and 
education, and branding 
 
Krista Bates reported on the healthy community initiatives including the Play Unplugged 
program idea.  City Manager Regan Bolli provided further details on the program. 
 
There was discussion and comments provided on this initiative along with questions asked, and 
Ms. Bates provided responses. 
 
Krista Bates also reported on the business expansion and education initiative including the 
business breakfast element.  Laura Roth reported on the business survey element via Survey 
Monkey. 
 
There was discussion and comments provided on this initiative along with questions asked, and 
CEDC members provided responses. 
 
Laura Roth reported on the branding initiative regarding this committee’s goal to meet with 
Communications and Marketing Manager Karla Slate on how the new brand can be used in the 
business community. 
 
There were comments provided and questions asked, and Ms. Roth provided responses.  There 
was then further discussion on this initiative. 
 
2.  Joining the Economic Development Council of Seattle and King County (EDC). 
 
CEDC Co-Chair Jeff Wagner introduced this item and then turned the report over to City 
Manager Regan Bolli. 
 
CEDC will bring recommendation to Council. 
 
3.  Working with City of Maple Valley. 
 
CEDC Co-Chair Jeff Wagner gave the report on this item, informing the group that the Maple 
Valley’s economic development group had asked to meet occasionally with the Covington 
Economic Development Council.  Mr. Wagner sought City Council and Chamber Board input on 
this idea. 
 
There was discussion on this item and feedback provided. 
 

6 of 45



Unapproved Draft – May 12, 2015 Special Joint Study Session with Covington Economic 
Development Council and Covington Chamber of Commerce Board of Directors Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  May 26, 2015 
 
 
Mayor Harto suggested that the City Council bring up the economic development topic at the 
May 27 tri-city meeting for discussion at future tri-city meetings. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 7:01 p.m. 
 
Prepared by:      Submitted by:  
 
__________________________________         
Joan Michaud      Sharon Scott 
Senior Deputy City Clerk    City Clerk 
 

7 of 45



Unapproved Draft – May 12, 2015 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  May 26, 2015 
 
 

1 
 

City of Covington 
Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday, May 12, 2015 
 
(This meeting was recorded and will be retained for a period of six years from the date of the 
meeting). 
 
The Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Covington was called to order in the City 
Council Chambers, 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington, Washington, Tuesday, May 12, 
2015, at 7:11 p.m., with Mayor Margaret Harto presiding. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Margaret Harto, Joe Cimaomo, Mark Lanza, Jim Scott, Sean Smith, and Jeff Wagner. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS ABSENT: 
Marlla Mhoon. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Scott moved and Councilmember Lanza seconded to 
excuse Councilmember Mhoon who was on vacation:  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 
Regan Bolli, City Manager; Don Vondran, Public Works Director; Noreen Beaufrere, Personnel 
Manager; Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director; Kevin Klason, Covington Police Chief; Richard Hart, 
Community Development Director; Scott Thomas, Parks & Recreation Director; Sara Springer, 
City Attorney; Bob Lindskov, City Engineer; and Sharon Scott, City Clerk/Executive Assistant. 
 
Mayor Harto invited Mayor Pro Tem Wagner to open the meeting with the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Council Action:  Mayor Pro Tem Wagner moved and Councilmember Lanza seconded to 
approve the Agenda.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION: 

• City Engineer Bob Lindskov accepted a proclamation for National Public Works Week - May 
17-23, 2015. 
 

• Kimberly Matej, Government Relations Manager, provided an introduction and update on the 
Kent Fire Department Regional Fire Authority.  

 
PUBLIC COMMENT:   
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 
 
Patricia Lynch, 17015 SE Wax Road, Covington, spoke against mandatory yard waste service. 
 

8 of 45



Unapproved Draft – May 12, 2015 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  May 26, 2015 
 
 

2 
 

Mary Pritchard, 26103 197th Avenue SE, Covington, spoke in favor of mandatory garbage, 
yard waste, and recycling service. 
 
There being no further comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA: 
C-1. Minutes:  April 28, 2015 City Council Special Joint Study Session with Human Services 

Commission and April 28, 2015 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes. 
 
C-2. Vouchers: Vouchers #32471-32525, including ACH Payments, in the Amount of 

$209,301.50, Dated May 1, 2015; and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1003700379-1003700394 
inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits, in the Amount of $170,017.41, Dated May 8, 
2015. 
 

Council Action:  Mayor Pro Tem Wagner moved and Councilmember Cimaomo seconded 
to approve the Consent Agenda.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
1.  Discuss and Consider Parks & Recreation Priorities Advisory Committee (PRePAC) Charter.   
 
Parks & Recreation Director Scott Thomas gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments and discussed this item. 
 
Council Action:  Mayor Pro Tem Wagner moved and Councilmember Scott seconded to 
adopt a charter in substantial form as that provided in the agenda packet to form the Parks 
and Recreation Advisory Committee (PRePAC) with the addition of “accessibility” 
inserted in the second bullet under the second purpose.  Vote:  4-2 (voting yes:  Harto, 
Scott, Smith, and Wagner; voting no:  Cimaomo and Lanza).  Motion carried. 
 
2.  Discuss Health Insurance Benefits for Councilmembers. 
 
Councilmember Cimaomo briefed the Council on why he brought this item forward and then 
turned the staff report over to Personnel Manager Noreen Beaufrere. 
 
Council Action:  There was Council consensus to not consider this item at this time. 
 
3.  Discuss and Consider Sister City Relationship with Tatsuno, Japan. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Lanza moved and Councilmember Scott seconded to 
direct staff to initiate forming a sister city relationship with Tatsuno, Japan.  Vote:  6-0.  
Motion carried. 
 
4.  2015 First Quarter Financial Reports. 
 

9 of 45



Unapproved Draft – May 12, 2015 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  May 26, 2015 
 
 

3 
 

Finance Director Rob Hendrickson gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions, and Mr. Hendrickson provided 
responses. 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS: 
Councilmembers and staff discussed Future Agenda Topics and made comments. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 
 
There being no comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
Potential litigation pursuant to (RCW 42.30.110(1)(i)) from 9:17 to 9:56 p.m. 
 
Mayor Harto announced the City Council would move into Executive Session for 20 minutes 
after which no further action was anticipated.  At 9:40 p.m. it was announced the Executive 
Session would continue for another ten minutes.  At 9:50 p.m. it was announced the Executive 
Session would continue for another five minutes.   
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 9:56 p.m. 
 
Prepared by:      Submitted by:  
 
__________________________________         
Joan Michaud      Sharon Scott 
Senior Deputy City Clerk    City Clerk 

10 of 45



Consent Agenda Item C-2 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  May 26, 2015 
 
SUBJECT:  APPROVAL OF VOUCHERS  
 
RECOMMENDED BY: Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S)

 

:  Electronic fund transfers in the Amount of $211,973.52, Dated May 1, 
2015; Vouchers #32526-32591, including ACH payments and electronic funds transfers, in the 
Amount of $254,740.57, Dated May 15, 2015; and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1003751650-
1003751659 and #1003751667-#1003751667 inclusive, plus employee direct deposits, in the 
Amount of $176,327.91, Dated May 22, 2015. 

PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION: Not applicable. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: Not applicable. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Not applicable. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance _____ Resolution     X      Motion            Other  

 
Councilmember ___________ moves, Councilmember _________________ 
seconds, to approve for payment Electronic fund transfers in the Amount 
of $211,973.52, Dated May 1, 2015; Vouchers #32526-32591, including 
ACH payments and electronic funds transfers, in the Amount of 
$254,740.57, Dated May 15, 2015; and Paylocity Payroll Checks 
#1003751650-1003751659 and #1003751667-#1003751667 inclusive, plus 
employee direct deposits, in the Amount of $176,327.91, Dated May 22, 
2015. 
 
 
 
 

 

11 of 45



12 of 45



13 of 45



14 of 45



15 of 45



16 of 45



17 of 45



18 of 45



19 of 45



20 of 45



21 of 45



22 of 45



23 of 45



24 of 45



25 of 45



26 of 45



27 of 45



28 of 45



  

Consent Agenda Item C-3 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: May 26, 2015   
 
SUBJECT:   APPOINT VOTING DELEGATES FOR THE 2015 ASSOCIATION OF WASHINGTON CITIES 

ANNUAL BUSINESS MEETING 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Regan Bolli, City Manager 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): None 

 
PREPARED BY:  Sharon Scott, City Clerk/Executive Assistant 
 
EXPLANATION:  
The Association of Washington Cities (AWC) will hold its annual business meeting this year on 
June 25 in Wenatchee.  Each city selects up to three delegates to vote on AWC policy at the 
annual business meeting held during the conference.  Also at the annual business meeting: 
 

• You elect your board of directors – the people who guide your association’s activities.  

• You debate the hot issues that impact cities.  

• Hear about AWC’s legislative work and what happened during the 2014 legislative 
session directly from AWC’s lobbyists. Find out how it impacts your city and what bills 
survived.  

Delegate selections need to be sent to AWC by June 17, 2015. Mayor Harto, Mayor Pro Tem 
Wagner, Councilmember Mhoon and City Manager Regan Bolli are registered to attend the 
conference. 
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
Not Applicable 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
None. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:  _____Ordinance  _____ Resolution       X     Motion               Other  
 

Councilmember ___________ moves, and Councilmember _________________ 
seconds to appoint Mayor Harto, Mayor Pro Tem Wagner and Councilmember 
Mhoon as the voting delegates to represent the City of Covington at the 2015 
Association of Washington Cities Annual Business Meeting. 

 
REVIEWED BY:  City Clerk 

 

29 of 45



Agenda Item 1 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  May 26, 2015 
 
SUBJECT:  RECEIVE PUBLIC TESTIMONY ON THE PROPOSED SIX-YEAR 2016 – 2021 

TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (TIP). 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Don Vondran, Public Works Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
1. 2016 – 2021 TIP Summary Spreadsheet 
2. 2016 – 2021 TIP Map 
3. 2016 – 2021 TIP Project Descriptions 
 
PREPARED BY:  Robert Lindskov, City Engineer 
 
EXPLANATION:   
The city is required by RCW 35.77.010 to annually prepare and adopt a comprehensive 
transportation program for the ensuing six calendar years and to forward a copy of that Six-Year 
Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) to the Washington State Secretary of Transportation 
by July 31st.  The TIP represents the first six years of the 20-year transportation (street) capital 
improvement program.  The projects contained in the proposed City of Covington Six-Year TIP 
2016 – 2021 are consistent with the transportation projects identified in the Capital Facilities 
Element of the City’s Comprehensive Plan adopted December 16, 2003.  
 
As a segment of the public involvement process, the City Council must hold a public hearing to 
receive testimony on the TIP.  This hearing has been properly noticed in the paper of local 
circulation.  The notification was in the Covington Reporter on May 8, 2015. 
 
On June 10, 2014, the City Council adopted the 2015-2020 Six-Year Transportation 
Improvement Program in Resolution No. 14-11.  This adoption included adding the 204th 
Avenue SE Covington Connector project, the 164th Avenue SE pedestrian safety and mobility 
project, and the Town Center 1 and 2 projects to the TIP.  The TIP we are presenting tonight 
remains relatively unchanged from last year (see attachments for details).  The Citywide 
Intersection Safety Project and the Jenkins Creek Park Project were removed due to 2015 
completion. 
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
Direct Staff to modify the draft 2016 – 2021 Six-Year TIP. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
The fiscal impact of each proposed project is indicated in the draft Six-Year TIP 2016 – 2021.  
The specific revenue source(s) for the city portion of the funds for each project is determined 
each year during the budget process.  Additional revenues are needed to fund these projects.  
Possible sources are grants, appropriations and traffic impact fees. 
 

30 of 45



CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance         Resolution            Motion      X   Other 
 

HOLD PUBLIC HEARING.  PROVIDE INPUT TO STAFF. 
 
REVIEWED BY:  City Manager, City Attorney, Finance Director 

31 of 45



ATTACHMENT 1

32 of 45



33 of 45



SR 18

SE 272ND ST

SE 256TH ST

RAMP

18
0T

H A
VE

 SE

16
4T

H A
VE

 SE

SE WAX RD

SE 240TH ST

15
6T

H A
VE

 SE

SE 261ST ST

20
4T

H A
VE

 SE

SE 251ST ST

16
8T

H 
PL

 SE

156TH PL SE

COVINGTON WAY SE

17
0T

H 
PL

 SE

160TH AVE SE

17
3R

D 
AV

E S
E

SE 279TH PL

SE 267TH PL

SE 267TH ST

19
7T

H P
L S

E

17
2N

D 
AV

E S
E

SE 262ND PL

19
9T

H 
PL

 SE

TIMBERLANE WAY SE

19
1S

T P
L S

E

194
TH

 AV
E S

E

20
0T

H A
VE

 SE

SE 270TH PL

SE 244TH ST

16
1S

T P
L S

E

19
3R

D 
PL

 SE

SE 271ST ST

SE 265TH ST

SE 266TH PL

SE 244TH PL

SE 277TH PL

FRONTAGE RD

21
0T

H A
VE

 SE

17
2N

D 
PL

 SE
SE 262ND ST

17
0T

H A
VE

 SE

15
2N

D 
AV

E S
E

SE 246TH ST

16
9T

H 
PL

 SE

19
6T

H A
VE

 SE

17
7T

H 
PL

 SE

16
6T

H 
PL

 SE

SE 259TH ST

SE 254TH PL

SE 260TH ST

SE 268TH ST

18
5T

H P
L S

E

186TH PL SE

15
1S

T P
L S

E

SE 269TH ST

TIM
BERLANE DR SE

18
4T

H A
VE

 SE

16
7T

H 
PL

 SE

16
1S

T A
VE

 SE

18
3R

D 
AV

E S
E

17
5T

H 
WA

Y S
E

SE 270TH ST

SE 247TH ST

199
TH

 AV
E S

E

17
9T

H 
PL

 SE

17
6T

H A
VE

 SE

SE 264TH ST

170TH WAY SE

17
6T

H 
PL

 SE

SE 260TH PL

17
5T

H A
VE

 SE

159TH AVE SE

15
3R

D 
AV

E S
E

SE 259TH PL

18
3R

D 
PL

 SE

17
1S

T P
L S

E

19
5T

H P
L S

E

19
2N

D 
PL

 SE

SE 249TH PL

17
1S

T A
VE

 SE

SE 253RD PL

188TH AVE SE

SE 266TH ST

SE 263RD PL

19
2N

D 
AV

E S
E

20
3R

D 
AV

E S
E

SE 268TH PL

19
5T

H 
CT

 SE

17
8T

H 
PL

 SE

SE 271ST PL

15
0T

H 
PL

 SE

21
1T

H A
VE

 SE16
5T

H 
PL

 SE

SE 256TH PL

189TH AVE SE

SE 258TH ST

159TH PL SE

18
6T

H A
VE

 SE

20
8T

H A
VE

 SE

18
5T

H A
VE

 SE

16
2N

D 
AV

E S
E

18
4T

H 
PL

 SE

17
4T

H 
PL

 SE

SE 263RD ST

16
8T

H A
VE

 SE

21
2T

H A
VE

 SE

19
6T

H 
PL

 SE

SE 254TH ST

SE 245TH PL

SE 246TH PL

SE 247TH PL

SE TIMBERLANE BLVD

SE 241ST PL

SE 261ST CT SE 261ST PL

19
0T

H 
PL

 SE

SE 252ND PL

20
6T

H A
VE

 SE

15
5T

H A
VE

 SE

SE 269TH PL

16
9T

H A
VE

 SE

SE 264TH PL

SE 263RD CT

SE 280TH PL

SE 255TH PL

SE 251ST PL

183RD CT SE

SE 258TH PL

186TH CT SE

SE 242ND ST

SE 241ST ST

16
3R

D 
PL

 SE

SE 262ND ST

19
6T

H A
VE

 SE

SE 264TH ST

16
0T

H A
VE

 SE

SE 260TH ST

SE 269TH ST
SE 268TH ST

SE 260TH ST

RAMP

SE 265TH ST

16
8T

H A
VE

 SE

18
8T

H A
VE

 SE

RAMP

SE 258TH ST

SE 267TH PL

20
0T

H A
VE

 SE

SE 268TH ST

SE WAX RD

16
5T

H 
PL

 SE

16
8T

H 
PL

 SE

SE 260TH ST

SE 268TH ST

SE 266TH ST
SE 267TH PL

SE 255TH PL

17
2N

D 
AV

E S
E

SE 262ND ST

SE 259TH ST

SE 263RD PL

SE 262ND PL

SE 263RD ST

SR 18
SE 266TH ST

SE 268TH ST

18
0T

H A
VE

 SE
SE 270TH ST

16
8T

H 
PL

 SE

19
2N

D 
AV

E S
E

SE 252ND PL

SE 264TH ST
SE 263RD PL

16
8T

H 
PL

 SE

SE 266TH ST

19
1S

T P
L S

E

16
7T

H 
PL

 SE

SE 269TH ST

SE 267TH ST

SE 261ST ST

17
6T

H A
VE

 SE

20
3R

D 
AV

E S
E

Pipe
 La

ke

1124

112811271063

1149

1056

This map is intended for planning purposes only. 
Information was compiled from the most accurate 
sources generally available.

6-Year Transportation 
Improvement Projects 2016-2021

City of Covington

Created By: Shawn Buck 05/11/2015

.

O:\Covington_GIS_Library\PROJECT_FOLDER\Public_Works
\Streets\TIP_Maps\6_Year_TIP\6_Year_TIP.mxd

1201

TC1

TC2

1086

ATTACHMENT 2

34 of 45



City of Covington 
2016-2021 6 Year TIP 
Project Descriptions 

 
Capital Improvement Project Priorities 
 
 
 
1. CIP 1127 SE 272nd Street between Jenkins Creek and 185th Place SE  

 
This project is to widen and reconstruct a portion of 
SE 272nd Street between Jenkins Creek and 185th 
Place SE.  This project will include the crossing of 
Jenkins Creek with a new structure for the stream, 
widening the street from 2-lanes to 5-lanes 
including curb and gutter, 8’ sidewalks, access 
control features, landscaping and provisions for u-
turns.   

 
 
 

 
 

2. CIP 1201 204th Avenue SE between SE 272nd Street SE and SE 259th Street 
 
The new roadway connection will provide overall 
benefits to the citywide street system by providing 
more options for vehicles traveling between SE 
272nd Street and SR 18.  This collector arterial will 
be widened to two 12-foot lanes, one 14-foot turn 
lane/median, and two 5-foot wide bike lanes.  Each 
side of the roadway will also include a curb, a 
gutter, a 5-foot landscape buffer, and a 5-foot 
sidewalk. 

 
 
 

3. CIP 1086 164th Avenue SE between SE 264th Street and vicinity SE 269th Street 
 
This project will install a 5’ separated walkway on 
the east side of 164th Avenue SE between SE 264th 
Street and just south of SE 269th Street.  This project 
will also install a drainage swale with underdrainage 
to convey and treat surface water. Once completed, 
this will provide a continuous separated 
walkway/sidewalk from Kentwood High School to 
the Covington Library.   
 

 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 3

35 of 45



City of Covington 
2016-2021 6 Year TIP 
Project Descriptions 

 
4. CIP 1128 SE 272nd Street between 185th Place SE and 192nd Avenue SE 

 
This project is to widen and reconstruct a portion 
of SE 272nd Street between 185th Place SE and 
192nd Avenue SE.  This project will widen the 
street from 2-lanes to 5-lanes including curb and 
gutter, 8’ sidewalks, access control features, 
landscaping and provisions for u-turns.   

 
 
 
 
 
5. CIP 1063 SE 272nd Street between 160th Avenue SE and 164th Avenue SE 

 
This project provides for design and future 
construction of additional turn lanes, 
channelization, and signal modifications.  
Widening SE 272nd Street will require 
modifications to the existing stream crossing at the 
intersection.  Project length is 800 feet.  Construct 
street section consistent with the existing SR 516 
section including illumination, landscaping, 10’ 
wide sidewalks with street trees in planting wells. 

 
 
 
 
 
6. CIP 1056 SE 256th Street between 172nd Avenue SE and 180th Avenue SE 

CIP 1149 180th Avenue SE between SE 256th Street and SE Wax Road (N)  
 
Portions of these two larger CIP projects (see map) 
are being combined to provide improvements 
adjacent to the new fire station at SE 256th Street 
and 180th Avenue SE.  The improvements will 
include widening the north side of SE 256th Street 
from 180th Avenue SE to 176th Avenue SE to match 
the section at 168th Avenue SE.  The frontage along 
180th Avenue SE will be widened from the 
intersection to Crestwood Elementary School. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

36 of 45



City of Covington 
2016-2021 6 Year TIP 
Project Descriptions 

 
7. Town Center 1     SE 276th Street between 168th Place SE and SE Wax Road 
 

This is a new route; new alignment roadway that 
will support the Town Center vision and meet the 
Town Center Design Guidelines.  The schedule 
of these projects will be primarily driven by 
development and may be constructed in portions.     
 
 

 
 
 
 
8. Town Center 2   171st Avenue SE (Main Street) between SE 275th Street and SE 276th Street 

 
This is a new route; new alignment roadway that 
will support the Town Center vision and meet the 
Town Center Design Guidelines.  The schedule of 
these projects will be primarily driven by 
development and may be constructed in portions.     

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9. CIP 1124 185th Place SE Extension - Wax Road/180th Ave SE to SE 272nd Street 

 
This project connects SE Wax Road/180th Avenue 
SE to SE 272nd Street via a new route and alignment 
designated as 185th Place SE.  The street section 
will consist of a 3-lane urban arterial standard with 
curb, gutter and 8’ sidewalks, landscaping strips, 
illumination and stormwater infrastructure.  The 
project will also include crossing Jenkins Creek.  
The actual route and alignment will be determined 
during design.    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

37 of 45



City of Covington 
2016-2021 6 Year TIP 
Project Descriptions 

 
 
COMPLETED 2015 

 
 
 

1. CIP 1029  Citywide Intersection Safety Project – 10 Locations  
This project is part of the WSDOT City Safety 
Program that is focused on intersection safety. The 
project will do safety improvements to 10 locations 
throughout the city. These improvements vary at 
each location but may include rechannelization, 
adding warning beacons and pavement markings; 
improving sight distance, and crosswalks; 
upgrading signs, sidewalks and ADA access points. 
The intersections are SE 272nd Street / 168th Place 
SE, SE 272nd Street / 172nd Place SE, 168th Place 
SE /169th Place SE, SE 270th Place / 174th Avenue 
SE, SE 256th Street / 180th Avenue SE, SE 267th Street / 192nd Avenue SE, SE 261st 
Street / 180th Avenue SE, SE 268th Street / 164th Avenue SE, SE Wax Road / 180th Ave 
SE and SE 256th / 170th Ave. SE. This project is fully funded and scheduled to be 
completed in 2014.   

 
 
2.  CIP 1014 Jenkins Creek Park between SE 267th Place and SE 268th Street 

 
This is a non-motorized transportation project that 
will construct a multiuse trail between SE 267th 
Place and SE 268th Street through Jenkins Creek 
Park.  This project will replace the pedestrian bridge 
that was washed out from a storm and once again 
connect neighborhoods to Jenkins Creek Elementary 
as well as provide ADA and bike access to and from 
the downtown core.     
 
 
 
 

38 of 45



Agenda Item 2  
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: May 26, 2015  
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSS FUNDING OPTIONS FOR HIRING AN ADDITIONAL POLICE 

OFFICER 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Regan Bolli, City Manager 
                                          
ATTACHMENT(S):  None 
 
PREPARED BY:  Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
 
EXPLANATION: 
At the January 31, 2015 Council Annual Strategic Planning Summit one of the council’s stated 
priorities was to “hire at least one more police officer”1

 

. The following information is provided 
by staff to aid the council’s discussion and consideration of available funding options to pay for 
an additional police officer. 

A. Current Police Services Budget. 
The city currently contracts with King County Sheriff’s Office for police services. The most 
recent budget information states the annual cost of an officer is $183,294.  
 
Currently, the city contracts with King County Sheriff’s Office for one police chief, 10 officers, 
one motorcycle officer, one school resource officer (costs are shared with Kent School District) 
and one detective for a total of 14. The most recent budget information states the fully loaded 
annual cost of an officer is $183,294. Base wages are slated to increase in 2016 by 2%. This 
would bring the cost of an officer in 2016 to approximately $188,000.   
 
Per the most recent budget forecast, and without adding additional revenue to offset the annual 
expenditure for police services, the general fund’s fund balance continues to remain above the 
20% reserve through 2019 and the 30% reserve threshold through 2018.  
 
B. Additional Budget Considerations. 
Beginning in 2016, the city’s animal control costs will increase dramatically. Additionally, in 
2019 both the streets and parks funds – which are heavily subsidized by the general fund – will 
fall below their 10% fund balance requirement. This means the general fund would need to 
further subsidize both funds to be in compliance with current finance policies. Other general 
concerns for negative budget impacts are inflationary pressures, legislative actions, and 
economic forces. Additionally, the city’s bond rating could be impacted by the city’s budget and 
spending decisions—a downgrading of the city’s bond rating could adversely impact the city’s 
finances without thoughtful and strategic planning for the future.  
 
 

                                                 
1 Notes from the Summary of the Annual Strategic Planning Summit section B 2(a).  

39 of 45



 
C. Funding Options for Hiring an Additional Police Officer. 
Based on the above, staff have identified the following funding options should the council desire 
to hire an additional police officer: 
 

1) End General Fund Subsidy of the Streets Fund. Though the council cannot take action 
on behalf of the Covington Transportation Benefit District (TBD) Board regarding 
funding options for the TBD, the council can strongly encourage the TBD Board to fully 
fund the TBD, which currently has no funding mechanism. Once the TBD is fully funded 
and contributes to eliminating the streets fund budget shortfall, the council could opt to 
end the general fund subsidy of the street fund. This would leave the level of service the 
same for streets while adding approximately $280,000 to the general fund (which is the 
current amount the general fund transfers to the street fund annually). Those freed general 
funds could then be allocated towards the cost of hiring an additional police officer.   
 

2) Increase the Utility Tax.  Currently, the city imposes a 6% utility tax on electric, gas, 
telephone, solid waste, surface water management (SWM), and cable television services. 
The utility tax imposed on electric, gas, and telephone utilities may not be increased 
beyond 6% without a public vote. However, there is no public vote required and no limit 
to how much the council may increase the utility tax rate on solid waste, SWM, and cable 
TV services. To note: cable TV services are governed by the federal Cable 
Communications Policy Act of 1984, which requires that cable TV utility tax rates may 
not be “unduly discriminatory.” However, this standard is easily met so long as the 
council imposes any tax increase similarly amongst all utilities (i.e. any tax rate increase 
would need to be applied equally to solid waste, SWM, and cable TV services).  

 
a. For means of consideration and discussion, a 2% increase of the tax rate on solid 

waste, SWM, and cable TV services (from 6% to 8%) would generate 
approximately $190,000 in additional revenue each year. This additional revenue 
may be used for any purpose, including the hiring of an additional police officer. 
Pursuant to CMC 3.70.020, the council would direct the use of such additional 
revenue through the city’s annual budget process. 
 

b. Another option for increasing utility tax revenue is to adopt a utility tax for water 
and sewer utility services. In 2014, a state appeals court ruled that a code city has 
the legal authority to impose its utility tax on the revenues of a public utility 
district's provision of water/sewer service to customers within the city limits, 
except to the extent that the district's revenues "were derived from governmental 
activities." (City of Wenatchee v. Chelan County Pub. Util. Dist. No. 1). The court 
found that when a water-sewer district provides utility services, it is, for the most 
part, acting in its proprietary capacity and such revenues may be taxed by the city. 
However, revenues from governmental actions of the utility, such as providing 
fire hydrants and revenues from recovering the costs of fire suppression water 
facilities and services, may not be taxed. The amount of annual revenue that may 
be generated from adopting a utility tax on water/sewer utilities is currently 

40 of 45



unknown; however, staff can attempt to estimate potential revenues should the 
council choose to explore this funding option further.  
 

c. The final option to consider in the utility tax category would be to put the increase 
on electric/gas/phone out to the voters. The annual revenue is unknown and 
dependent on an affirmative vote.  

 
3) Address Fund Balance Shortfalls in the Future. Finally, because the city’s general 

fund is projected to remain above the 20% reserve threshold through 2019, and the streets 
and parks funds above the 10% threshold until 2019, the council could choose to hire an 
additional police officer while leaving the remainder of the current general fund 
expenditures and revenues unchanged. Accordingly, the council could address fund 
balance concerns as they arise in the future.  

 
ALTERNATIVES: 

1. Do not fund another officer at this time.   
2. Return the issue to city staff for further study and analysis. 
3. Look for other funding alternatives.  

 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
To summarize the fiscal impact, the annual cost of an officer is $183,294. The general fund is 
continuing to support streets ($331,075 annually) and parks ($989,060 annually). Other 
competing costs, which are outside of the city’s control, are rising, such as animal services 
(additional $56,267 annually starting next year).   
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance       Resolution         Motion      X   Other 

 
DISCUSSION ITEM ONLY – ASK QUESTIONS OF STAFF 

 
REVIEWED BY:  City Manager; City Attorney; Finance Director 

41 of 45



  
Covington City Council Meeting 

           Date:  May 26, 2015 

 
DISCUSSION OF  

FUTURE AGENDA TOPICS: 
 
 

6:30 p.m. Wednesday, May 27, 2015 Tri City Meeting 
(Covington Hosting @ Covington City Hall) 

 
6:00 p.m., Tuesday, June 9, 2015 Special Meeting 

Joint Study Session with Parks & Recreation Commission 
 

7:00 p.m., Tuesday, June 9, 2015 Regular Meeting 
 
 

(Draft Agendas Attached) 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

42 of 45



Americans with Disabilities Act – reasonable accommodations provided upon request a minimum of 24 hours in advance (253-480-2400). 
 

 

 
 

BLACK DIAMOND COUNCIL COVINGTON COUNCIL MAPLE VALLEY COUNCIL 
Mayor Carol Benson Mayor Margaret Harto Mayor Bill Allison 

Mayor Pro Tem Tamie Deady Mayor Pro Tem Jeff Wagner Deputy Mayor Sean Kelly 
Councilmember Craig Goodwin Councilmember Joseph Cimaomo, Jr. Councilmember Layne Barnes 
Councilmember Janie Edelman Councilmember Mark Lanza Councilmember Noel Gerken 
Councilmember Erika Morgan Councilmember Marlla Mhoon Councilmember Linda Johnson 

Councilmember Ron Taylor Councilmember Jim Scott Councilmember Dana Parnello 
 Councilmember Sean Smith Councilmember Erin Weaver 

 
8th ANNUAL JOINT CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 

CITIES OF BLACK DIAMOND, COVINGTON AND MAPLE VALLEY 
Hosted by City of Covington 

 
Wednesday, May 27, 2015, 6:30 p.m. 

Covington City Hall Council Chambers 
16720 SE 271st Street, Covington WA 

RECEPTION - 6:30 PM 

CALL MEETING TO ORDER - 7:00 PM – MAYOR HARTO 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

INTRODUCTIONS 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

OPENING REMARKS – MAYOR HARTO 

ITEMS FOR JOINT COUNCIL DISCUSSION 
 

1. King County Council Update (King County Councilmember Reagan Dunn) 
2. Update on Current and Future Projects (City Managers) 
3. Parks and Trails Presentation (Parks Directors)  
4. Update on Both ILAs (Community Development & Public Works Directors)  
5. Human Services Report (Victoria Throm, Covington Human Services Analyst) 
6. Decision to Dissolve SEATS (City Managers) 

COUNCIL CLOSING REMARKS 

ADJOURN 

43 of 45



 
 
 
 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 

CITY COUNCIL JOINT STUDY SESSION WITH PARKS & RECREATION COMMISSION 
Council Chambers – 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

www.covingtonwa.gov 
 

Tuesday, June 9, 2015 – 6:00 p.m. 
                                                                         
GENERAL INFORMATION: 
The study session is an informal meeting involving discussion between and among the City Council, 
Commissioners, and city staff regarding policy issues.  Study sessions may involve presentations, 
feedback, brainstorming, etc., regarding further work to be done by the staff on key policy matters. 
 
CALL CITY COUNCIL JOINT STUDY SESSION TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
ITEM(S) FOR DISCUSSION 
1. To be determined. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, 
not the audience or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes 
per speaker.  Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
ADJOURN 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Americans with Disabilities Act – reasonable accommodations provided upon request a minimum of 24 hours in advance 
(253-480-2400). 
 
 
 

*Note* A Regular Council meeting will follow at approximately 7:00 p.m. 

Draft 
as of 05/21/15 

 

44 of 45

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�


 
 
 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

www.covingtonwa.gov 
Tuesday, June 9, 2015                                                                                                          City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                                            16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
Note:  A Joint Meeting with the Parks & Recreation Commission is scheduled from 6:00 to 7:00 p.m. 

CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION - NONE 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, 
not the audience or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes 
per speaker.  Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes:  May 26, 2015 Regular Meeting and May 27, 2015 Tri Cities Special Meeting (Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson) 
C-3. Approve Jenkins Creek Park Pedestrian Project Construction Contract (Lindskov) 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
1. Consider Appointments to Arts Commission (Council) 
2. Discuss and Consider Resolution Adopting 2016-2021 Transportation Improvement Program 

(Lindskov) 
3. Discuss Covington Community Park Maintenance Recommendation (Vondran) 
4. Discuss Arts Funding Program (Thomas) 

 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT *See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – if needed 
 
ADJOURN 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Americans with Disabilities Act – reasonable accommodations provided upon request a minimum of 24 hours in advance 
(253-480-2400). 

Draft 
as of 05/21/15 

 

45 of 45

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�

	05-26-2015 Regular Meeting Agenda
	Tuesday, May 26, 2015                                                                                                        City Council Chambers
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	PUBLIC COMMUNICATION - NONE

	Consent C-1 Green Sheet 05-26-2015 Green Sheet Minutes Approval
	Consent Agenda Item C-1

	Consent C-1 Attachment 1 05.06.2015 Special Meeting @ Kentlake High School
	Consent C-1 Attachment 2 05.12.2015 Special Joint Mtg w-CEDC & Chamber
	Consent C-1 Attachment 3 05.12.2015 Regular Meeting Minutes
	Consent C-2 Green Sheet 05-26-2015 Voucher Green Sheet
	Consent Agenda Item C-2

	Consent C-3 Green Sheet 05-26-15 AWC Voting Delegates Blue Sheet
	Consent Agenda Item C-3

	Item 1 Blue Sheet 05-26-15 6 Yr TIP Public Hearing Blue Sheet
	Agenda Item 1

	Item 1 Attachment 1 - Summary Spreadsheet
	Item 1 Attachment 2 - Map
	Item 1 Attachment 3 - Project Descriptions
	Item 2 Blue Sheet_05_26_2015_Police Officer Funding Options Final
	Agenda Item 2

	Future Agenda Cover Sheet for Two Meetings
	05-27-2015 Tri City Meeting
	06-09-2015 Special Joint Meeting w-P&R Commission Agenda
	Tuesday, June 9, 2015 – 6:00 p.m.
	ROLL CALL
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA

	06-09-2015 Regular Meeting Agenda
	Tuesday, June 9, 2015                                                                                                          City Council Chambers
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	PUBLIC COMMUNICATION - NONE




